
 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA 

Employee Assembly Meeting  
February 17, 2021 
12:15 – 1:30 pm 

Remote Via Zoom 

 

“An Active Voice for Cornell Staff” 
 

We strive to make all events accessible. If you are in need of accommodations in order to fully participate, please 
contact the Office of the Assemblies at (607) 255-3715 or assembly@cornell.edu. 

I. Call to Order 12:15pm 

II. Roll Call 

III. Approval of the minutes from February 3, 2021  

IV. Business of the Day  

a. Dan Maas, Associate Director of the Office of Emergency Management 

b. Discussion of EA R7 
c. Discussion of EA R8 
d. Staff Forums Update 

V. Committee Reports  

a. Executive Committee – Michelle LoParco 

b. Communications and Awards Committee – Ellen Miller 

c. Education Committee – Jessica Withers 

d. Welfare Committee – Kristine Mahoney 

e. Benefits and Policy Committee – Brian Goodell 

f. Elections Committee – Nasser Siadat 

VI. New Business  

a. Open Discussion 

VII. Adjournment – 1:30pm 
 
 

mailto:assembly@cornell.edu


 

 

   

 

 

Cornell Employee Assembly 

Minutes of the February 3, 2021 Meeting   

12:15-1:30 PM 

Zoom 

 

I. Call to Order 

a. Chair H. Depew called the meeting to order at 12:15pm.  

 

II. Roll Call 

Members Present [23]: S. Barry, M. Cherry, J. Creque, H. Depew, J. Duong, B. Fortenberry, 

B. Goodell, A. Haenlin-Mott, E. Ivory, M. LoParco, K. Mahoney, V. McAuley, J. Michael, 

A. Miller, E. Miller, M. Newhart, M. Podolec, K. Supron, K. Tannenbaum, L. Taylor, J. 

Townley, J. Withers, L. Zacharias           

a. Members Absent [6]: J. Cannella, B. Fisher, D. Howell, R. Lochner, N. Siadat, K. Wilcox, 

 

III. Approval of the minutes from January 6, 2021 

a. The minutes of the January 6, 2021 meeting were approved unanimously.  

 

IV. Business of the Day 

a. Discussion of EA R6: Support for Student Assembly Leadership from Racism, Threats, and 

Harassment – J. Duong 

i. J. Duong noted that he had drafted the resolution after information came to light about 

the harassment SA leaders were facing. He noted that the resolution had already passed 

unanimously through the Executive Committee and added that the resolution 

intentionally focused on the harassment the leaders were facing rather than the issues of 

the resolutions they were working on.  

ii. B. Fortenberry conveyed support for the resolution stating that it was important for the 

EA to show support to the SA in light of the circumstances. He expressed the 

extraordinary disappointment he felt in the situation. B. Fortenberry also recommended 

that the mention of three SA members on Lines 28 and 29 of the resolution be broadened 

to state multiple members noting that the harassment was not limited to just the three SA 

members. B. Fortenberry also suggested the resolution be adjusted where it stated “were 

bombarded with an overwhelming influx of violent messages and slurs from right-wing 

accounts” on Lines 28 and 29, by also acknowledging that the members were faced with 

violent, sexist, racist comments. Additionally, members had their names and photos 

published on prominent social media accounts and had articles sent about them with 

sources that had intentionally edited transcripts.      

b. Staff Forums Update 

i. H. Depew noted that the Welfare Committee was currently working on planning a civil 

discourse panel discussion and still working on the details for who to involve. H. Depew 

also noted that plans were in the work for an employee finance staff forum that would 

bring together VP P. Streeter and EVP/CFO J. DeStefano to talk about the current 

financial state of affairs in preparation for a new fiscal year.    

c. Retreat Update 



 

 

i. H. Depew stated that the retreat would consist of 45 minutes with VP Opperman in the 

beginning including a 10 minute presentation from VP Opperman followed by questions. 

H. Depew noted that the question period would provide a great opportunity to engage 

with VP Opperman, especially in working through the points of the Priorities Poll and 

getting a better sense of what HR was already doing to address the issues. The 

questioning period would then be followed by the EA members collectively discussing 

and getting feedback on the points from the poll and then going into breakout rooms by 

committee to further discuss potential solutions. In preparing for the retreat, H. Depew 

encouraged members to read their breakout room committee report assignment and the 

priority and feedback related to their committee.   

 

V. Committee Reports 

a. Executive Committee – M. LoParco 

i. M. LoParco noted that the last meeting of committee was on January 28th and the 

discussion topics included the retreat agenda, EA senior leader interviews with the hope 

of discussing with K. Mahoney if the initiative would still be pursued, the George Peter 

Award, the next steps for the Elections Committee with G. Giambattista and N. Siadat, 

and the rollout of the upcoming EA elections. 

b. Communications and Awards Committee – E. Miller 

i. E. Miller noted that the committee had met the day before and had a robust conversation. 

One topic included the January newsletter that had received positive reviews and how to 

go forward with content for the February newsletter that had a tentative February 15th 

distribution date. E. Miller noted that certain items that the committee was planning on 

including in the newsletter for February were a feature of Student & Campus Life 

employees and other employees involved in the move-in process, a feature on on-

campus essential workers, a spotlight on B. Fortenberry, and information on the new 

Dining Recognition Program. She also asked members to contact her with any ideas they 

had about other items to include in the February newsletter.  

ii. E. Miller also added that the committee had also discussed some events for March 

including a tech campus focused newsletter, discussion on the education benefits 

presented in January, the George Peter Award (for achievement) and the formerly 

Opperman Award (for advocacy), and the Priorities Poll results. She noted that their had 

also been a lot of discussion regarding what the committee could do to get recognition of 

employees back on the forefront. 

c. Education Committee – J. Withers 

i. J. Withers noted that the committee had held the informative panel on Staff Education 

Benefits and discussed the profile of how staff and supervisors felt about the benefits. 

1. E. Miller asked about the number of individuals in attendance at the panel. 

2. H. Depew responded that it was 436 individuals.    

d. Welfare Committee – K. Mahoney 

i. K. Mahoney noted that the committee had held a joint meeting with the BPC and hosted 

an HR administrator to discuss the Belonging at Cornell Survey and the thoughts of HR 

surrounding a transition to a hybrid work from home model. K. Mahoney also noted that 

she wanted to discuss the senior leaders interview with H. Depew to reconcile her 

understanding of it.  

e. Benefits and Policy Committee – B. Goodell 

i. B. Goodell noted that the most recent meeting discussion had revolved around EA R5 

thanking the administration noting that it was ultimately decided to not move forward 



 

 

with it, correspondence about the performance dialogue process, the process for campus 

reactivation, and correspondence about the vaccine process and who was eligible. 

ii. H. Depew noted that University leaders were in active conversation with representatives 

in Albany to get fair treatment for University staff as received by P-12. 

iii. R. White stated that the major issues was not that of what the categories were but rather 

getting the vaccines noting that there were not enough vaccines in the county to fulfill 

the current demand.  

f. Elections Committee – N. Siadat 

i. No Update 

 

VI. New Business 

a. Open Discussion 

i. EA R6: Support for Student Assembly Leadership from Racism, Threats, and 

Harassment 

1. B. Goodell asked if the language on Line 29 could be changed to “political extreme 

group” as to not marginalize right-wing groups and individuals. 

2. J. Duong stated that the wording on Line 29 was in quotes because it was the 

language used by the Cornell Sun in its article and including it was less about having 

the resolution marginalize groups and more about not doing a disservice to the 

students that suffered the harassment. J. Duong stated that he would not support the 

language change if an amendment was made for it. 

3. B. Fortenberry stated that he believed the phrasing could be better worded than it 

was in the Cornell Sun noting that the quote unnecessarily politicized the comments 

rather than directly pointing out their racist, misogynistic, and sexist nature. B, 

Fortenberry added that he understood J. Duong’s statement about minimizing EA 

influence in “watering-down” the situation but noted that the resolution was being 

put forward by the EA in an attempt to make a statement about the members 

perceptions of the situation. 

4. C. Tempelman expressed support for the resolution and the edits proposed by B. 

Fortenberry because off the greater context it provided to the situation and in 

acknowledging that the harassment was aimed at multiple SA members. 

5. J. Duong mentioned that he would be open to adding context of the racist and sexist 

remarks proposed by B. Fortenberry but noted that the resolution should quote the 

Cornell Sun in regard to “right-wing…” rather than remove it. 

6. E. Miller moved to table the resolution until the next meeting to continue the 

discussion offline. B. Goodell seconded the motion. 

7. B. Fortenberry dissented stating that the discussion could be resolved in the meeting 

and stressed the importance of passing the resolution rather than wait another few 

weeks. B. Fortenberry also said that the discussion could continue to provide J. 

Duong with feedback to revise the resolution and vote on it over email. 

8. H. Depew echoed agreement with B. Fortenberry’s statement stating that if the 

assembly waited too long, it would miss the window of opportunity in addressing the 

issue. 

9. M. LoParco also echoed B. Fortenberry’s statement of finishing the discussing at the 

meeting. She added that the Executive Committee had discussed keeping Line 28/29 

as a quote, but she would be open to B. Fortenberry’s changes on it if a consensus 

could be reached.  



 

 

10. M. Newhart echoed M. LoParco’s comments and expressed discomfort with keeping 

the quote because of how it would politicize the issue. She stated that she would be 

in favor of substituting the quote with B. Fortenberry’s suggestion.  

11. The motion to table the resolution proposed by E. Miller and seconded by B. Goodell 

failed. 

12. M. Newhart motioned to replace Lines 28 and 29 with "Whereas, Multiple members 

of the Student Assembly received an influx of violent, sexist, and racist comments, 

including the publishing of students names and photos on prominent social media 

accounts, as well as articles sent to news sources with intentionally edited transcripts 

and quotes to fabricate false narratives." The motion was seconded and amended 

with no dissent. 

13. The resolution, with the amendments, was approved with one abstention 

ii. University Response to Inclement Weather 

1. K. Tannenbaum expressed disappointment with the Universities lack of response on 

the previous day’s inclement weather noting that the University should be posting 

updates on the website regularly. 

2. J. Withers also echoed frustrations with the response noting that as a co-sponsor of 

the resolution addressing the Universities response with the snowfall from the 

February 2020, they had asked for a report from the administration and did not 

receive it. J. Withers noted that the response from the administration was that a 

review was conducted and asked if any member knew of a way to receive the review.  

3. H. Depew provided information on the resolution along with the feedback from 

President Pollack on the resolution. 

4. J. Duong stated that it seemed as if the decisions on closure were being made in a 

vacuum without taking into account the stress of things such as finding childcare 

during a period where the entire county was closed. 

5. B. Goodell noted that the University should be releasing statements informing the 

community on either the reason it decided to stay open or the reason it decided to 

close. He added that he did not want the administration to not use the mentality of 

community members being remote to justify staying open. 

6. K. Tannenbaum stated that she had not received any University-level information on 

the storm and added that even if the focus was on facilitating Move-In week, she did 

not understand why needing staff essential for move-in would necessitate all staff to 

be on campus. 

7. B. Fortenberry stated the decisions the University made on whether to open or not 

were based on the amount of snow fall per hour and the ability of the ground crew to 

clear the snow and added that the University had made the decision to stay open 

because it was determined that the ground crew could clear the snow. However, he 

did agree with K. Tannenbaum and previous speakers acknowledging that the 

University could have done a better job in communicating their decision. 

8. A. Miller noted that the University should keep community members informed on 

the final decision. A. Miller also added that the University could control the roads 

on-campus but had no control over the rest of the county and stated that community 

members should use their best judgment in deciding whether or not the roads were 

safe to get to work. 

9. L. Zacharias expressed frustration with the Universities lack of closure and stated 

that the University should based their decision of closure off of the status of 



 

 

Tompkins County and other counties and the weather warnings they were being 

placed under. 

10. M. Podolec stated that the Universities communications about inclement weather 

were part of the larger discussion regarding how remote wok would work.  

11. A. Haenlin-Mott stated that the Universities communication about the delayed 

opening of COVID testing sites was a good example of the communication they 

should have with inclement weather issues in general. A. Haenlin-Mott added that 

although it was not necessary to receive hour-by-hour updates, updates on the 

operating status and the progress of the ground crew’s work would be helpful.  

12. K. Tannenbaum expressed agreement with A. Miller and stated that there was 

something to be said about the decision to stay open despite Tompkins County being 

in a state of emergency. 

13. M. Cherry noted that although it was important to use one’s judgment to make a 

decision, the decisions were never made in a vacuum and took into account many 

other things. She stated that the real benefit of having Cornell communicate clearly 

and close when appropriate was that it would take all of the additional input away 

when deciding whether or not to go to work and allow staff to prioritize their safety. 

14. H. Depew encouraged the committees to take up the issue and discuss how it could 

be addressed. 

15. L. Zacharias also added that she did not think it was right for the University or 

schools in general to close the physical space and still expect for work to be done 

remotely.   

 

VII. Adjournment 

a. The meeting was adjourned at 1:27pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Office of the Assemblies 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Page 1 of 2 

EA R7: Postponing Spring 2021 Elections  1 

 2 

Abstract: This resolution delays the 2021 spring elections. 3 

 4 

Sponsored by: Nasser Siadat, Chair of the Elections Committee and Less than 5 Years of 5 

Service Representative At-Large; Jamie Duong, SC Johnson College of Business representative; 6 

Ellen T Miller, Research, Research, Tech Transfer & IT Representative 7 

 8 

Reviewed by: Elections Committee (February 15, 2021) 9 

Whereas, Section 1.3 of the Cornell University Employee Assembly Bylaws, as amended on 10 

July 29, 2019, states, in pertinent part, that the organizational meeting is “to occur as soon as 11 

possible after the conclusion of employee election, but not later than April 15”, and;  12 

 13 

Whereas, the aforementioned date was a legacy provision derived from the traditional academic 14 

calendar, as, historically, the Employee Assembly met only during the academic year, with the 15 

last meeting occurring before the last day of classes, and;  16 

 17 

Whereas, the aforementioned date is also a reflection of the organizational meeting of the 18 

University Assembly, by which the Employee Assembly must have delegates assigned from the 19 

newly elected EA body, and;  20 

 21 

Whereas, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the last day of classes during the spring 2021 22 

semester will not follow the traditional academic calendar, but has instead been postponed to 23 

May 14, 2021, and;  24 

 25 

Whereas, the organizational meeting of the University Assembly has also been postponed due to 26 

the COVID-19 pandemic. 27 

  28 

Be it therefore resolved, the Assembly shall accordingly postpone the 2021 organizational 29 

meeting to a date occurring before May 14, 2021, the last date of classes of the spring 2021 30 

semester, and;   31 

 32 

Be it further resolved, the organizational meeting of the Employee Assembly shall occur prior 33 

to that of the University Assembly. 34 

 35 

Adopted by Vote of the Assembly (X-X-X), {Date},  36 

{If adopted, the vote counts and Adopted Date will be filled in by the EA Chair prior to 37 

submitting to the President’s Office} 38 

 39 

Respectfully Submitted, 40 

 41 

Nasser Siadat 42 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Page 2 of 2 

Chair, Employee Assembly Elections Committee 43 

Less than 5 Years of Service Representative At-Large 44 

 45 

Jamie Duong 46 

SC Johnson College of Business representative  47 

 48 

Ellen T Miller 49 

Research, Tech Transfer & IT Representative 50 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 4 

EA R8: Updates to The George Peter Award for Dedicated Service 
 

Abstract: The George Peter Award for Dedicated Service is the longest running and most 1 
prestigious university-wide peer-nominated award for staff. Since its inception in 1980, the award 2 
has been conferred to over 190 Cornell employees. The Employee Assembly would like to 3 

continue this long-standing tradition with refined terms, eligibility and criteria. 4 

 5 
Sponsored by: Ellen T Miller - Research, Tech Transfer & IT Representative At-Large and Vice 6 
Chair for Communications; Marin Cherry - Cornell Tech Campus Representative; Jackie Creque 7 
- College of Veterinary Medicine Representative; Andrea Haenlin-Mott - Disability 8 
Representative At-Large; Ashley Miller - Division of Human Resources Representative 9 

 10 
Reviewed by: Communications, Outreach & Recognition Committee, 02/16/2021 11 
 12 

 13 
Whereas, the Cornell University Employee Assembly (Assembly) values and recognizes 14 

outstanding staff contributions “above and beyond normal job expectations” via the George Peter 15 
Award for Dedicated Service (George Peter Award); and 16 
 17 
Whereas, the George Peter Award was established in 1980 and has been conferred to over 190 18 
Cornell Employees; and 19 

 20 

Whereas, the George Peter Award is awarded to Cornell staff members who consistently 21 
demonstrate a high degree of excellence in the performance of their duties and who prove their 22 
willingness to extend themselves to help others and go above and beyond the normal expectations 23 
of their job responsibilities; and 24 
 25 

Whereas, as a peer-nominated award, nominations may only be submitted by Cornell staff 26 

members with direct experience working with the nominee; and 27 
 28 
Whereas, the George Peter Award was most recently presented in April 2018; and 29 
 30 

Whereas, additional opportunities for staff recognition have developed through the years; and 31 
 32 

Whereas the Assembly has reviewed and refined the criteria and process of the George Peter 33 
Award. 34 
 35 

Be it therefore resolved, the Assembly continues to recognize the historical importance of the 36 
George Peter Award; and   37 

  38 
Be it further resolved, the Assembly will present the award annually; and 39 

 40 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 

Be it further resolved, the Assembly defines “eligible staff” as “all full-time Cornell staff 41 
members with five or more years of service”; and 42 
 43 

Be it further resolved, the Assembly defines the selection criteria for the George Peter Award as 44 
the following: 45 

• Excellence in the performance of their assigned duties,  46 

• Dedication to their job and work group that goes above and beyond expectations,  47 

• Respect for the contributions of staff at all levels,  48 

• Commitment to lifelong learning,  49 

• Having positive impact on the university; and 50 
 51 

Be it further resolved, the committee of the Assembly currently charged with oversight of awards 52 

and recognition shall retain authority to update the criteria, timing and communications of this 53 
award as needed over time; and  54 
 55 
Be it finally resolved, a copy of this resolution be presented to Martha Pollack, President and 56 
Mary Opperman, Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer. 57 

 58 
Adopted by Vote of the Assembly (xx-xx-xx), XX/XX/2021. 59 
 60 
Respectfully Submitted, 61 
 62 

Employee Assembly Communications, Outreach & Recognition Committee: 63 

 Marin Cherry - Voting Member, Employee Assembly Representative 64 
 Kristen Ciferri - Voting Member, Employee Representative 65 
 Jackie Creque - Voting Member, Employee Assembly Representative 66 
 Brandon Fortenberry - Observer, Employee Assembly Representative 67 

 Andrea Haenlin-Mott - Voting Member, Employee Assembly Representative 68 

 Katie Hollenbeck - Voting Member, Employee Representative 69 
 Ashley Miller - Voting Member, Employee Assembly Representative 70 
 Ellen T Miller - Chair & Vice Chair for Communications, EA 71 
 Denny Totman - Voting Member, Employee Representative 72 
 Jessica Withers - Observer - Employee Assembly Representative 73 

 74 

Addendum 1: George Peter Award for Dedicated Service Overview 75 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 

Addendum 1: George Peter Award for Dedicated Service Overview 
 

George Peter Award for Dedicated Service 

George Peter revolutionized the status of Cornell employees and served as a tireless ambassador 

for the university. Throughout his 40-year career, Peter was an active member of the campus 

community. He led the effort to broaden Cornell employees' participation in shared governance, 

advocating for staff representation in university decision-making and creating opportunities for 

official recognition of employee achievements.  

 

Overview 

The George Peter Award for Dedicated Service is given annually by the Employee Assembly to 

staff who consistently demonstrate excellence in the performance of their duties, and who prove 

their willingness to extend themselves to help others and go above and beyond the normal 

expectations of their job responsibilities. The recipient(s) are announced at a celebration event 

hosted by the recipient’s department or unit. Since its inception in 1980, the award has been 

bestowed on over 190 Cornell employees. 

 

Eligibility 

All full-time Cornell staff members with five or more years of service are eligible for consideration 

for this award. 

 

Selection Criteria 

Nominees must demonstrate: 

• Excellence in the performance of their assigned duties.  

• Dedication to their job and work group that goes above and beyond expectations. 

• Respect for the contributions of staff at all levels. 

• Commitment to lifelong learning. 

• Having positive impact on the university. 

 

Nominations  

This is a peer-nominated award. Nominations may only be submitted by Cornell staff members. 

Any staff member wishing to nominate a colleague should have direct experience working with 

the nominee and must submit a completed nomination packet. The nomination packet is a single 

PDF document consisting of: 

- Coversheet  

- Nomination letter explaining why this person deserves the award, citing relevant examples 

wherever possible. This can be co-signed by multiple staff members. 

- Letter of support from nominee’s direct supervisor. 

- Up to three brief letters of support from other members of the Cornell community (staff, 

faculty, students, administrators, alumni) 

 

The selection committee is accepting nominations through TBD. Note: Previously declined 

nominations can be resubmitted, updated as appropriate. 

https://news.cornell.edu/stories/2008/08/advocate-cornell-employees-george-peter-dies
https://assembly.cornell.edu/past-recipients-george-peter-award-dedicated-service


 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 Download the nomination packet 

 Submit your nomination online 

 

If you have any questions about the award and the process for nominations, please contact the 

chair of the EA Communications, Outreach & Recognition Committee at employee-

awards@cornell.edu or, for technical difficulties, contact the Office of the Assemblies 

at assembly@cornell.edu or 607-255-3715. 

mailto:employee-awards@cornell.edu
mailto:employee-awards@cornell.edu
mailto:assembly@cornell.edu

	EA Agenda 2.17.2021
	EA Meeting Minutes 2021-02-03 (Draft)
	EA R7 - Postponing Spring 2021 Elections
	EA R8 - Updates to The George Peter Award for Dedicated Service

